



Contents:

1. Club Definition and Objectives
2. Club Committees, General Meetings and Elections
3. Club Finance Governance
4. Club Membership
5. Club Discipline
6. Match Tickets
7. Club House Bar
8. Trustees
9. General

1 Club Definition & Objectives

- 1.1 The club shall be called “Midleton Rugby Football Club”;
- 1.2 The main objective of the club shall be to provide facilities for the members to play the game of Rugby Football Union. The objectives of the club are the playing and furtherance of Rugby Union Football. All other games, past-times, or athletic activities, whether indoors or outdoors, lawfully permitted by the club committee in or on the club’s property shall be incidental or ancillary amenities, subservient in all respects to rugby football and its best interest in the club;
- 1.3 That the club shall adhere to this Constitution and bye laws;
- 1.4 That this Constitution and bye laws may be amended by a properly formed motion at an AGM or EGM;
- 1.5 That this Constitution and bye laws may be put forward for consideration for a full review at the AGM;
- 1.6 The club premises shall be situated at Townspark Midleton, Co Cork;
- 1.7 That the official Club colours be Red and Black. Red jersey, black shorts and red stockings and that all members wear the Club colours when playing Club matches and that they be kept clean and in good repair. That the club have an alternative jersey, colours to be agreed by the General Committee in accordance with the rules of the I.R.F.U.;
- 1.8 That the official club crest shall be a shield topped with 4 shamrocks and divided into four equal parts as follows: Top left the club “red devil” face in red on a black background, Top Right divided in half (top right to bottom left) with Goal posts on light blue background over cricket bat, ball and stumps over dark green background. Bottom left a whiskey still on a green background, Bottom right Rugby Ball on yellow background. The club name Midleton RFC shall be on a banner under the shield in Calligraphy black print on a yellow background.





2 Club Committees, General Meetings and Elections

- 2.1 The club be governed by a General Committee elected annually
- 2.2 That the General Committee shall consist of the following Officer Positions
 1. President
 2. Vice President
 3. Chairperson
 4. Honorary Secretary
 5. Assistant Honorary Secretary
 6. Honorary Treasurer #1 (Joint Treasurer)
 7. Honorary Treasurer #2 (Joint Treasurer)
 8. Representative to the Munster Branch I.R.F.U.
 9. Fixtures Secretary
 10. Public Relations Officer
 11. Directory of Rugby
 12. Social & Fundraising Chairperson
 13. Juvenile Chairperson
 14. Bar & Hall Chairperson
 15. Lotto Chairperson
 16. Grounds & Gym Chairperson

All above Officers shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting and serve until the next Annual General Meeting. Job Descriptions for Officers of the club to be maintained, and reviewed at the first meeting of the newly formed General Committee. The President, Vice President and Chairperson of the club shall be elected annually at the AGM. That the role of President will be to represent the club at formal functions and act as an ambassador and leader for the club along with duties as identified in these rules. The President shall be assisted by one Vice President. The President and Vice President shall have voting positions on the General Committee. That the role of Chairperson will be to oversee and direct the day to day operations of the club and lead the General Committee

2.3 Meeting Voting:

- 2.3.1 Members who may vote at a properly convened EGM or AGM meeting of the club are:
 - a. Adult Players;
 - b. Full Members;
 - c. Friends of Midleton RFC;
 - d. Family Members;
 - e. Life Members;
 - f. Youth Members;

That duly elected or appointed members of the General Committee or Sub Committees shall be entitled to a vote at a properly convened meeting of their Committee;

To be eligible to exercise a vote at a meeting said members must have paid their current membership, and have attained the minimum age of 18.

- 2.3.2 At a meeting where a question on which a vote is required; it shall be determined by a simple majority of votes of the eligible members present and voting on the question and, in the case of an equal division of votes, the chairperson of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote;
- 2.4 The Club Chairperson shall be considered chairperson of any properly formed meeting to which they attend;
- 2.5 That where the Club Chairperson is unable to perform his duties, it shall fall to the General Committee to appoint an Interim-chairperson from the current General Committee Membership for the duration;
- 2.6 All meetings will be conducted in accordance with standing orders;



2.7 Elections to the General Committee

- 2.7.1 All members of the General Committee shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting
- 2.7.2 The current officer positions of the General Committee are stipulated in section 2.2. The members at an Annual General Meeting may vote to amend the composition of the General Committee where a properly formed motion has been submitted to the AGM (or an EGM);
- 2.7.3 That a member must be fully paid up and a member of the Club for at least two years to be eligible for election to the General Committee;
- 2.7.4 That a member being properly proposed for a position on the General Committee must be in attendance at the AGM to stand for the position. Where a member is unable to attend the AGM for this purpose notice of their intention to accept a nomination and subsequent election to the General Committee must be given in writing to the Honorary Secretary at least 5 days in advance of the AGM;
- 2.7.5 Any Election may be postponed or delegated to the General Committee at the discretion of the Annual General Meeting in extenuating circumstances only and only with a 2/3rd vote of the members at the Annual General Meeting;

- 2.7.6 Officers of the General Committee shall be elected as follows:
 - 2.7.6.1 A member must be proposed and seconded from the floor for each Officer Position of the General Committee;
 - 2.7.6.2 Each Officer Position is considered a single position separate and independent from other positions on the committee; however should there be insufficient candidates to fill all positions, the meeting may decide to appoint a candidate to more than one position or apply section 2.7.5
 - 2.7.6.3 Any joint position on the committee (i.e. Treasurers) are considered separate positions for election to the General Committee;
 - 2.7.6.4 Where there is only one member proposed for an Officer Position that person shall be deemed elected;
 - 2.7.6.5 Where more than one member is proposed for an Officer Position then an election shall be called;
 - 2.7.6.6 Election protocol:
 - 2.7.6.6.1 Elections will be supervised by three tellers who are members that are appointed by the current executive to oversee and ensure that the voting is conducted in accordance with the Club Constitution;
 - 2.7.6.6.2 A Separate election must be held for each contested position;
 - 2.7.6.6.3 The election shall be by secret ballot;
 - 2.7.6.6.4 The Tellers will issue ballots to all members present and eligible to vote. Eligibility to vote will be established by showing the Tellers a current membership card;
 - 2.7.6.6.5 Members shall record the proposed Officer Position and name of their preferred candidate on the ballot;
 - 2.7.6.6.6 Ballots shall be folded and returned to the Tellers who shall tabulate the results;
 - 2.7.6.6.7 On agreement of the majority of tellers, the result will be announced to the meeting;
 - 2.7.6.6.8 Where the Tellers cannot agree the results, the vote will be considered void and be retaken;
 - 2.7.6.6.9 In the event of a tie drawing lots amongst those tied shall fill the place on the committee.



2.8 Sub committees

- 2.8.1 That the General Committee may appoint Sub-Committees to carry out specific functions necessary to the activities of the Club;
- 2.8.2 That all sub-committees cease to exist when the General Committee goes out of office;
- 2.8.3 That the appointed sub committees at their first meeting; appoint a Chairperson, define terms of reference for the sub committee operation and submit same to the General Committee for approval;
- 2.8.4 That all sub-committees have a minimum composition of three club members of whom at least one is a member of the General Committee;
- 2.8.5 That the club Chairperson may attend all sub-committee meetings;
- 2.8.6 That where a Sub-Committee agrees to co-opt a member from outside the General Committee onto its body that this person must be a club member, proposed to and approved by the General Committee;
- 2.8.7 Such Sub-Committees shall conform to any decisions given to them by the General Committee and that they will report to the General Committee who shall have final say in all matters;
- 2.8.8 That the following sub committees be formed at the first meeting of the General Committee following the Annual General Meeting and shall meet on a regular basis;
 - 2.8.8.1 Executive sub-committee consisting of The Club Chairperson, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Treasurers, Director of Rugby (or rep of Rugby) and Juvenile Chairperson. That the Executive Sub Committee be responsible for the governance of the club affairs and ensuring the application and adoption of the club Constitution and bye-laws;
 - 2.8.8.2 Finance sub-committee consisting of the joint Honorary Treasurers and Club Chairperson and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.3 Bar & Hall sub-committee consisting of the Bar & Hall Chairperson, the Honorary Treasurers, Social & Fundraising Chairperson, Club Administrator, and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.4 Rugby sub-committee consisting of the Director of rugby, Head Coach, Club Chairperson, Child / Player welfare officer(s) and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.5 Juvenile sub-committee consisting of the Juvenile Chairperson, Youth Coordinator an Honorary Treasurer and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.6 Lotto sub-committee consisting of the Lotto Chairperson, an Honorary Treasurer and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.7 Grounds & Gym sub-committee consisting of the Grounds & Gym Chairperson, Director of Rugby, Honorary Treasurer and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.8.8.8 Social & Fundraising sub-committee consisting of the Social & Fundraising Chairperson, Bar Chairperson, an Honorary Treasurer and other members as proposed and adopted at a General Committee Meeting.



2.9 General Committee Meetings

- 2.9.1 Meetings to be conducted in accordance with Standing Orders;
- 2.9.2 The General Committee shall meet at least once a month. The Honorary Secretary shall arrange to have Minutes kept of all matters coming before the General Committee and shall present such minutes for approval and ratification to the next meeting of the General Committee. The Honorary Secretary shall present the correspondence of the Club;
- 2.9.3 That the Honorary Secretary shall give not less than five days clear notice in writing of the date of a General Committee Meeting stating the time and venue for such meeting to each member of the General Committee Club. Committee members will then have 3 days to request the Honorary Secretary to include additional items for discussion on the meeting Agenda. Not less than two days before the meeting the Honorary Secretary will circulate a copy of the meeting agenda to all committee members;
- 2.9.4 That the quorum for a General Committee meeting to be held shall be half General committee membership;
- 2.9.5 That the Honorary Secretary shall convene an Extraordinary meeting of the General Committee on request from not less than half plus one of the members of the General Committee where there is a pressing matter to be discussed. No matter shall be decided at such meeting other than that specified in the Resolution or Petition for calling the meeting;
- 2.9.6 The Joint Honorary Treasurers shall present a statement of the financial affairs of the club covering all accounts at the regular General Committee Meeting;
- 2.9.7 That in addition to any agenda item that needs to be dealt with at the time of a meeting the following standing agenda items shall be addressed at each General Committee Meeting;
 - 2.9.7.1 Minutes of the previous meeting;
 - 2.9.7.2 Correspondence;
 - 2.9.7.3 Finance report;
 - 2.9.7.4 Sub Committee Reports;
 - 2.9.7.5 Meeting specific points;
 - 2.9.7.6 Appointment of members to the club;
 - 2.9.7.7 Any Other Business;
- 2.9.8 Any member of the General Committee absent from two consecutive meetings must give satisfactory explanation to the Executive Committee. The committee member may be asked to vacate their office through a resolution proposed by the Chairperson of the executive Committee, seconded and voted on at a General Committee meeting. The General Committee may fill any vacancy so vacated.
- 2.9.9 That any member of the General Committee in receipt of payments from the club in any form shall be excused from any general meeting discussing their position.



2.10 Annual General Meetings & Extraordinary General Meeting

- 2.10.1 That each member of the club who on the last day of October has paid their subscription for the current season and is eligible to vote per section 2.3 shall be entitled to vote at any Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Club and at the following Annual General Meeting and to use the Club Facilities. All members have equal voting rights. Should voting parties be equal in number the casting vote will go to the current Club Chairperson;
- 2.10.2 That the Honorary Secretary shall give not less than ten days clear notice in writing of the date of a General Meeting stating the time and venue for such meetings, to each member of the Club through reasonable communication endeavours and posted notices;
- 2.10.3 That the notice of any proposed motions (Motions for consideration at the AGM) or specific amendments alteration or addition to the Constitution & Bye Laws shall be sent to the Honorary Secretary in writing at least seven days before the Annual General Meeting of the Club. Such motions to be considered valid must have a proposer and seconder who are members in accordance with section 4.
- 2.10.4 That motions to change or amend the Constitution and Bye-laws shall require a two thirds majority of the members eligible to vote
- 2.10.5 Annual General Meeting;
- 2.10.5.1 Meetings to be conducted in accordance with Standing Orders;
- 2.10.5.2 The AGM shall be chaired by the President up to the election of the incoming Chairperson;
- 2.10.5.3 The Agenda at each Annual General Meeting shall be as follows
- i. Presidents address;
 - ii. The Hon Secretary to read of the minutes of the previous AGM;
 - iii. Secretary's Address;
 - iv. Chairpersons report;
 - v. Treasurer's Report;
 - vi. Club Captains Report;
 - vii. Director of Rugby's Report's;
 - viii. Munster Branch Rep's Report;
 - ix. Social & Fundraising Report;
 - x. Juvenile Chairpersons Report;
 - xi. Motions before the Annual General Meeting;
 - xii. Election of Officers to the General Committee;
 - xiii. Hon Treasurers to propose the member subscriptions for the coming year;
 - xiv. Consideration of any other business;
- 2.10.5.4 The Honorary Secretary shall record the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting and these minutes shall be read out at the next Annual General Meeting;
- 2.10.6 Extraordinary General Meeting;
- 2.10.6.1 The Honorary Secretary shall at any time Summon an Extraordinary General Meeting on a Resolution of the General Committee or a Petition signed by not less than 20 voting members. No matter shall be decided at such meeting other than that specified in the Resolution or Petition for calling the meeting;
- 2.10.6.2 That the Honorary Secretary shall give notice of an EGM in line with the rule for notice for an AGM as set out in section 2.10.2;



3 Club Finance Governance

- 3.1.1 That the correct account books shall be kept by the Joint Honorary Treasurers showing the financial affairs and receipts and disbursements of the Club;
- 3.1.2 That the club accounts be examined and signed prior to the Annual General Meeting by an external accountant approved by the General Committee;
- 3.1.3 That the Treasurers put in place procedures that shall be approved by the General Committee for governance and management of the Club Finances in line with good accounting practices, IRFU rules and Revenue Commissioners Rules such as they may apply to the Club;
- 3.1.4 That the Treasurers be responsible for administration of all club bank accounts and ensure that they are maintained in good order;
- 3.1.5 That no sub committee in the course of its activities (in line with its terms of reference); commits the Club to debts or shall incur debts that are not approved in advance by the Finance Sub-Committee;
- 3.1.6 That those creditors of the club be paid in a timely manner;
- 3.1.7 That no member or committee member carry out any action, transaction or activity on behalf of the club that may bring into disrepute the financial reputation of the club;
- 3.1.8 That the Finance Committee approves club expenditure in advance that is above a limit as set by the General Committee.

4 Club Membership

- 4.1.1 Membership Types:
 - (a) Adult Players;
 - (b) Full Members;
 - (c) Family Members;
 - (d) Friends of Midleton RFC;
 - (e) Life Members;
 - (f) Youth Players.
- 4.1.2 The election of members shall rest with the General Committee of the club;
- 4.1.3 Candidates for membership must be duly proposed and seconded by members and notice of their nomination must be given to the Hon. Secretary in writing;
- 4.1.4 Applications for new membership shall be accepted at any time during the season: Subject to the conditions in this section 4 any such New Member will have full voting rights and be eligible to play for the club if selected;
- 4.1.5 New members may not pay online for their subscription until their membership application is proposed and approved by the general committee. Any payment made online is considered conditional on this approval being forthcoming;
- 4.1.6 Membership subscription shall be payable by such persons in advance and their membership shall be deemed to have commenced on payment of such subscription and expire on the 31st day of the following October;
- 4.1.7 That if any person has not on the 31st day of October of the current season paid their subscription, they will not under any circumstances be eligible to vote, hold any office in the club or be selected to play on any team in the club or to avail of the privileges of membership of the club
- 4.1.8 All Annual Membership Subscriptions, other than those of new members and Life Members shall be payable in advance by the 31st day of October in each year. New members annual subscriptions are due immediately upon the General Committee approving membership;
- 4.1.9 That the General Committee may elect a person a Life Member or an Honorary Vice-President of the Club.
- 4.1.10 That the Honorary Secretary distributes Elected committee & fixtures lists to Trustees and Life members every season.
- 4.1.11 The members of visiting clubs whose team are playing on the Clubs grounds shall for the day these matches are played, be temporary honorary members of the Club, as shall also be the Referees and officials of such matches.



- 4.1.12 Waiver of legal rights: pursuant to the provisions of section 34(1)(b) of the Civil Liability Act 1961 members waive their legal entitlement to claim against a fellow member, Officer or Committee member, compensation for personal injury, loss or damage, however caused.
- 4.1.13 That members partake in playing and training activities of the Club at their own risk and are responsible for their own insurance.
- 4.1.14 Data Protection: Pursuant to the provision of the Data Protection Act 1988-2003 members consent to the club obtaining, recording, holding and retaining their personal data (including sensitive personal data) solely for club purposes, either on its computer or its manual filing system, and consent to the use of all such data, including disclosure to third parties, for the proper and effective management of the club.

5 Club Discipline

- 5.1.1.1 That any member may be reported to the Executive Committee for disciplinary review where they are accused of conduct that may be considered detrimental to the interest, reputation or well being of the club (Both on and off the field of play);
- 5.1.1.2 That the Executive Committee shall appoint a Disciplinary Panel for all such matters consisting of not less than 3 Independent Members of the club to conduct an enquiry into the allegation of misconduct;
- 5.1.1.3 That a member being dealt with in this manner shall be given a reasonable opportunity to attend before the Disciplinary Panel to explain their alleged misconduct and is entitled to have one member in attendance;
- 5.1.1.4 That the Disciplinary Panel shall have the power to cancel membership, suspend for any length of time, or impose a suitable sanction on the member where the allegation made is upheld;
- 5.1.1.5 That the member shall have the right of appeal against any sanction so imposed by presenting that appeal in writing to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee will then appoint an Appeal Panel consisting of not less than three Independent members (and expressly excluding those members who participated in the Disciplinary Panel), to review the findings of the Disciplinary Panel and if required to conduct their own review;
- 5.1.1.6 That the member being dealt with in this manner shall be given a reasonable opportunity to attend before the Appeal Panel to explain their alleged misconduct and is entitled to have one person in attendance with them to speak on their behalf;
- 5.1.1.7 That the Appeal Panel shall have the power to reverse or uphold the decision of the Disciplinary Panel;
- 5.1.1.8 That all members agree to be bound by the decision of the Appeal Panel and its findings shall be final.

6 Match Tickets

- 6.1.1 That the members interested in obtaining such tickets must give their name to the Ticket Manager (The Ticket Manager being a person appointed by the General Committee, reporting to the Finance Committee) within a timeframe as set by the Ticket Manager for ordering of said tickets;
- 6.1.2 Membership does not guarantee access to the clubs allocation of tickets and where there is an over-subscription for tickets, the Club Secretary in conjunction the ticket manager will advise members of the latest date for applications for tickets. Once this date has passed and there is a surplus of applications from fully paid up members over the amount of tickets available, then an open draw for the tickets will take place;
- 6.1.3 That the Ticket Manager may dispose of any surplus tickets outside of the club membership to ensure no loss of revenue to the club;
- 6.1.4 That the member obtaining a ticket, must pay the Honorary Treasurer for the ticket beforehand and on no account shall tickets be given out without payment in advance.



7 Club House Bar

- 7.1.1 No person who is not a member shall order or pay for refreshment in the Clubhouse; cash must be paid for every expense incurred in the Clubhouse before the person ordering leaves the premises;
- 7.1.2 No visitor shall be supplied with excisable liquor on the club premises unless on the invitation and in the company of a member, and that member upon the admission of such visitor to the club premises or immediately upon his being supplied with such liquor, enter his or her name and the name and address of the visitor in a book which will be kept for that purpose and which shall show the date of each visit;
- 7.1.3 The committee may prohibit the admission of any visitor to the club premises and no member shall bring the person whose admission is prohibited into the club premises;
- 7.1.4 No excisable liquor shall be sold or supplied for consumption outside the premises of the club, except to members of the club, between the hours of eight o'clock in the morning and ten o'clock at night;
- 7.1.5 No excisable liquors shall be sold to any person under 18 years of age. No member of the Committee and no officer, manager or servant employed by the club shall have any personal interest in the sale of excisable liquors therein or in the profits arising from such sale;
- 7.1.6 That no person shall be allowed to become honorary or temporary members of the Club or be relieved of the payment of regular entrance fee or subscription, except those possessing certain qualifications defined in these rules, and subject to the conditions and regulations prescribed therein:
- 7.1.7 That the rules of the club be amended to confirm with the provisions of Section 3 and Section 7 of the intoxicating Liquor Act 2000 thus:
- 7.1.8 No excisable liquor shall be supplied for consumption on the Club premises to any person or be consumed on the club premises by any person:
- On any weekday before the hour of 10:30 a.m. in the morning,
 - On any Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday after the hour of 11.30 pm.
 - On Thursday, Friday and Saturday after the hour of 12:30 a.m. on the following day,
 - On any Sunday, before the hour of 12.30 pm and after the hour of 11.00 pm.
 - At anytime on Christmas day or Good Friday
 - On St. Patrick's Day before the hour of 12.30 pm or after the hour of 12.30 am on the following day
 - On the 23rd December if it falls on a Sunday before the hours of 10.30 am and after the hour of 11:30pm
 - On the eve of a Public Holiday if it falls on a weekday before the hour of 10:30am and after the hour of 12:30am on the following day
 - On the eve of a Public Holiday if it falls on a Sunday before the hour of 12:30am and after the hour of 12:30am on the following day
- 7.1.9 Nothing contained in the Registration of Clubs Acts, 1904 - 1986, or contained by virtue of subsection 1 of Section 56 of the intoxicating Liquor act 1927 as amended by Subsection 1 of Section 7 of the intoxicating liquor act 2000 as inserted or amended in these Rules hereof shall operate to prohibit the supplying for consumption on the Club premises of excisable liquors to any person or the consumption of excisable liquor on the club premises by any person:
- On any Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday between the hours of 10:30am and 12:30pm
 - On any Thursday, Friday and Saturday between the hours of 10:30am and 1:30am on the following day
 - On any Sunday between the hours of 10:30am and 12:00pm

If in each case the excisable liquor:

Is ordered by that person at the same time as a substantial meal is consumed at the same time as and with the meal

Supplied and consumed in the same portion of the premises usually set apart for the supply of meals, and paid for at the same time as the meal is paid for.



8 Trustees

- 8.1.1 All freehold and leasehold property of the Club shall be vested in not less than four and not more than five trustees
- 8.1.2 The trustees of the club shall deal with the Assets of the Club as directed by a resolution of the General committee (hereafter referred to as the Committee) of which an entry in the Minute Book of the Committee Meeting shall be sufficient evidence.
- 8.1.3 The trustees shall be elected at a committee meeting of the club and each shall hold office until they shall resign or be removed from office by the Committee for the time being;
- 8.1.4 Should the number of Trustees fall below four, the Committee shall have the power to appoint a Trustee or Trustees
- 8.1.5 The Trustees shall have the power, subject to the approval of the committee to borrow without security or in the security of all or any part of the clubs property.
- 8.1.6 If any moneys which have been demanded from the club, and are legally due, and have not been paid within three years the Trustees shall have the power, subject to the approval of the members at an Extraordinary General Meeting, to sell part of the club assets such as to satisfy the debt.
- 8.1.7 If on the winding up or the dissolution of the club, or its ceasing to function for its main object, any property remains after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, such property shall not be paid to or distributed among the members of the Club, but shall be given to such body or association having objectives similar to the Club and which prohibits the distribution of its income and property amongst its members to the extent at least as great as imposed hereunder, such body or association to be determined by the members of the club at or before the time of dissolution; and if and so far as effect cannot be given to this provision, then to the Minister for Tourism Sport and Recreation.

9 General

- 9.1.1 Every Trustee, Officer or Member of the Committee and duly appointed member of the sub committee shall be indemnified out of the assets of the club for all acts properly carried out by them in the pursuance of their duty. If such assets are insufficient then they shall be indemnified by the members jointly and severally against all losses or liabilities which they may sustain or incur in or about the proper execution of their office. No such person shall be liable for any loss, damage or liability which may happen to or be incurred by the Club due to the execution by them of their duties of in connection with their office unless the same shall occur through their default or dishonesty or gross negligence. The Trustees of the club shall meet at least twice a year with the Executive Committee. The Trustees may attend any meeting of a committee concerned with the administration of the Club.
- 9.1.2 Any Provisions which are contained in these Rules which are not in conformity with any Statutory provision contained in the Registration of Clubs acts 1904 to 1995 and the intoxicating Liquor act 2000 shall be deemed null and void.
- 9.1.3 That every member shall be furnished with a copy of the Constitution & Bye-Laws of the club and shall be bound thereby.

This Constitution proposed and adopted at EGM on the 20th January 2015

Amended AGM May 2015